
 
 
 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

APUS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
March 4, 2016 

Meeting Package 
 

In this package: 
 

1. Annual General Meeting Agenda for March 4, 2016 
2. Minutes Package 

a. April 6, 2015 Annual General Meeting Minutes 
b. October 8, 2014 Special General Meeting Minutes 

3. APUS Audited Financial Statements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

APUS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
March 4, 2016 

 
6:00 – 7:00 pm 

Suite 236, North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Report of the APUS Executive 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Motion  Moved: Rambali  Seconded: Pyne 
 
Be it resolved that the meeting minutes from the April 6, 2015 Annual General 
Meeting be approved as presented. 
 
Be it further resolved that the meeting minutes from the October 8, 2014 
Special General Meeting be approved as presented. 

 
4. Auditor’s Report 

Motion  Moved: Rambali  Seconded: Pyne 
 

Be it resolved that the Auditor’s report be accepted as presented. 
 

5. Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements 2014-2015 
Motion  Moved: Rambali  Seconded: Pyne   
 
Be it resolved that the Audited Financial Statements for 2014-2015 be received 
as presented. 

 
6. Appointment of the Auditors for 2015-2016 

Motion  Moved: Rambali  Seconded: Pyne 
 
Be it resolved that Yale and Partners LLP be appointed the APUS auditors for 
fiscal year 2015-2016. 
 
Be it further resolved that the Board of Directors fix the remuneration of the 
auditors for the 2015-2016 audit. 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

Annual General Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2015  

(rescheduled from March 13, 2015) 
Suite 236, North Borden Building 

563 Spadina Crescent 
 

Attendance: Adam Woerlein, Munib Sajjad, Riley McCullough, Amir Moazzami, Mala Kashyap, 
Corey Scott, Therese Elkhoury, Segen Kidane, Margaret Ebifegha, Nicole Dionisio, Kriya 
Siewrattan, Susan Froom, Susan Murray, Asad Jamal, Maina Rambali, Richard Pyne, Erin 
Mealey, Anika Ahmed 
Guests: Lane Rasmussen (APUS Auditor), Ashkon Hashemi (APUS Speaker) 
Staff: Danielle Sandhu, Hadia Akhtar Khan 
 

1. Call to order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:27 pm. 
 

2. Report of the APUS Executive 
 

Siewrattan provides an overview of the APUS services, campaigns, and programming for 
the year. 
 
Akhtar Khan provides an overview of the APUS Assembly and the events over the year.   
 
Froom states that APUS has taken a position on the rights of international students, in 
particular the rights of international students to sit on Governing Council. 
 
Jamal states that we have taken a position on fossil fuel divestment advocating for the 
University to divest. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

MOTION Moved: Siewrattan   Seconded: S. Murray 
 
Be it resolved that the meeting minutes from the April 7, 2014 Annual General 
Meeting be approved as presented. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Froom states that we did have a meeting on October 8, 2014 and we should receive the 
minutes from that meeting. 
 
Jamal asks if that was a continuation of the previous general meeting. 
 
Hashemi states no, this was a separate members’ meeting. 
 
Vote carries. 
 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

4. Auditor’s Report 
MOTION Moved: Siewrattan  Seconded: S. Murray 
 
Be it resolved that the Auditor’s report be accepted as presented. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Rasmussen states that the audit process was smooth. He states that Management was 
cooperative in taking any recommendations presented by the auditors and the auditors 
were not prevented from seeing any areas of finance. He states the report is enclosed 
and he can take any questions. 
 
Vote carries. 

 
5. Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements 2013-2014 

MOTION   Moved: Siewrattan  Seconded: S. Murray 
 
Be it resolved that the Audited Financial Statements for 2013-2014 be received 
as presented. 

 
 Vote carries. 
 

6. Appointment of the Auditors for 2014-2015 
MOTION  Moved: Siewrattan  Seconded: S. Murray 
 
Be it resolved that Yale and Partners LLP be appointed the APUS auditors for 
fiscal year 2014-2015. 
Be it further resolved that the Board of Directors fix the remuneration of the  
auditors for the 2014-2015 audit. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Hashemi explains why the general membership rather than the Board of Directors’ is 
responsible for selecting the auditor for the corporation, clarifying this is one of the 
responsibilities and rights of members under the Corporations Act. 
 
Siewrattan states that the current auditor has been been great to work with and that the 
APUS Executive is recommending Yale and Partners LLP. 
 
Vote carries. 

 
7. Adjournment 

Moved: Sajjad  Seconded: Scott 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:05 pm. 
 
 
 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

Annual General Meeting Minutes 
March 13, 2015 

Suite 236, North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent 

 
In attendance: Amir Moazzami, Maina Rambali, Margaret Ebifegha, George Gawronski, Erin 
Mealey, Nicole Dionisio, Bryan Murray, Asad Jamal, Munib Sajjad, Yolen Bollo-Kamara, Kriya 
Siewrattan, Richard Pyne, Corey Scott, Riley McCullough, Tess Elkhoury, Susan Murray, Mala 
Kashyap, Patrick Dool, Chris McNab, Anika Ahmed 
Guests: Lane Rasmussen (Auditor), Ashkon Hashemi (APUS Speaker) 
Staff: Danielle Sandhu 
 

1. Call to order 
 
 The meeting was called to order at 5:32 pm. 
 

The speaker noted that there was no quorum and the meeting would be adjourned to  
April 6, 2015. 
 

2. Adjournment 
 Moved: Siewrattan  Seconded: Froom 
  
 Vote carries. 
 

The meeting was adjourned until April 6, 2015 at 5 pm. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

APUS GENERAL MEETING MINUTES 
October 8, 2014 

(Rescheduled from September 17, 2014) 
Suite 236, North Borden Building 

563 Spadina Crescent 
 
In attendance: Kriya Siewrattan, Nicole Dionisio (proxy), Munib Sajjad (proxy), Patrick 
Dooc (proxy), Bryan Murray, Susan Murray, Susan Froom, Corey Scott (proxy), 
Margaret Ebifegha, Maina Rambali, Amir Moazzami (proxy), Constanza Farias, George 
Gawronski 
Staff: Danielle Sandhu 
Guests: Ashkon Hashemi (APUS Speaker), Vilko Zbogar (APUS Lawyer) 
 
1. Call to order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm. 
 
2. Report of the APUS Executive 
 

The Speaker states that this item was covered in the last meeting of 
September 17, 2014. 

 
3. Articles of Continuance 

MOTION                  Moved: Siewrattan     Seconded: Froom 
  
WHEREAS it is considered to be in the best interests of the Corporation that it 
be continued under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act (CNFP Act) 
pursuant to section 297 of the CNFP Act, and thereafter continued in Ontario 
under the Corporations Act; 
  
Be it resolved as a special resolution that: 
  

1.  The directors of the Corporation are authorized and directed to make an 
application under section 297 of the CNFP Act to the Director appointed under 
the CNFP Act for a Certificate of Continuance of the Corporation; 

2.  The Articles of Continuance (transition) of the Corporation, which have been 
submitted to this meeting and are annexed to these minutes as Schedule A, are 
approved; 

3.  Upon receipt of the Certificate of Continuance under the NFP Act, the general 
operating by-law of the Corporation will be the general operating by-law that is 
currently in force, except to the extent that it is inconsistent with the Canada 
Not-for-Profit Corporations Act in which case the provisions in the Canada Not-
for-Profit Corporations Act will prevail; 

4.  Following the receipt of a Certificate of Continuance under the NFP Act, the 
directors of the Corporation are authorized and directed to make an Application 
for Continuation in Ontario of an Extra-Provincial Corporation under s.312(3) of 
the Corporations Act; 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

5.  The Application for Continuation in Ontario of an Extra-Provincial Corporation, 
which has been submitted to this meeting and which is annexed to these 
minutes as Schedule B, is approved; 

6.  Upon receipt of the Letters Patent of Continuation in Ontario, the general 
operating by-law of the Corporation will be the general operating by-law that is 
currently in force, except to the extent that it is inconsistent with the Ontario 
Corporations Act in which case the provisions of the Corporations Act will 
prevail; 

7.  Any one of the officers and directors of the Corporation is authorized to take all 
such actions and execute and deliver all such documentation, including the 
annexed Articles of Continuance (transition), the notice of registered office and 
of directors in the forms fixed by the Director, and the Application for 
Continuation in Ontario of an Extra-Provincial Corporation which are necessary 
or desirable for the implementation of this resolution. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Siewrattan states that the motion to incorporate provincially was passed by the 
Board unanimously at the Board of Directors’ on August 5, 2014.  She further 
states that UTSU and APUS are the only federally incorporated bodies and that 
the GSU has transitioned to being provincially incorporated. 
 
Zbogar states that most not-for-profit corporations are incorporated under the 
provincial act. He states APUS is incorporated under the Canada Corporations 
Act and new law passed requires us to transfer to the Canada Not-for-profit 
Corporations Act. He states that the old act does not allow for us to incorporate 
provincially, but the Ontario one does. He states that there is a two-step 
process; the first is to transfer to the Canada Not-for-Profit Act, and then 
second to transfer to Ontario. 
 
B. Murray asks what it means to be incorporated as compared to not 
incorporated. 
 
Zbogar states that this is about legal protection. He states that any actions that 
the corporate structure takes protects the interests of the members and that 
when students volunteer for positions, it provides them some legal protections. 
He provides an example using employment and contracts to show how liability 
falls on a legal entity, and that would fall to the organization and not any 
individual executives. 
 
Froom states that in the sitting of the last provincial legislature there was a bill 
on student union rights. She states it is in our long-term interest financially and 
legally to incorporate provincially. 
 
Zbogar discusses Schedule A and Schedule B, both of which are referred to in 
the resolution. He states that the objects of the corporation are not changing.    
 
Vote carries.  
 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

 
4. Adjournment 
Moved: Froom  Seconded: B. Murray 

 
Vote carries. 
 
The meeting ended at 6:40 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students 
North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent, Suite 236 
Toronto, Ontario M5S 2J7 
	  

APUS General Meeting Minutes 
September 17, 2014 

Suite 236, North Borden Building 
563 Spadina Crescent 

 
 
In attendance: Sue Froom, Jon Dundas, Maina Rambali, Margaret Ebifegha, Farhad Roostaeyn, 
Susan Murray, Kriya Siewrattan, George Gawronski 
Staff: Danielle Sandhu 
Guests: Ashkon Hashemi (APUS Speaker) 
  

1. Call to order 
 
 The meeting was called to order at 6:32 pm. 
 

The speaker noted that there was no quorum and the meeting would be adjourned to  
October 8, 2014. 
 

2. Adjournment 
 Moved: Froom  Seconded: Siewrattan 
  
 Vote carries. 
 

The meeting was adjourned until October 8, 2014 at 6 pm. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Yolisa
Typewritten Text
Unofficial Copy - Not for Circulation

Yolisa
Typewritten Text

Yolisa
Typewritten Text

Yolisa
Typewritten Text

Yolisa
Typewritten Text
























	AgmMeetingPackage
	APUS Audit - Unofficial



